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          1  FINANCE AND LAND USE COMMITTEES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Just so everybody

          3  knows, we have a quorum now so we're able to vote.

          4  Please don't forget that we have Amanda Burden, the

          5  City Planning Commissioner, coming at 11:00 to

          6  testify about the changes in the City Planning

          7  budget, and then we have DoITT coming at 12:00 to

          8  talk about the changes in their budget. There's a

          9  few changes there.

         10                 Landmarks is not testifying because

         11  there was no change between the last budget and this

         12  budget and we needed the room for something else, so

         13  we agreed on that.

         14                 So, I just want to remind folks that

         15  Amanda will be here, the Commissioner will be here

         16  at 11:00, Commissioner of DoITT will be here at

         17  12:00.  So, we will have a quorum for the day if

         18  people are coming in and out.

         19                 If I could have everybody's

         20  attention, this will be very quick so we can go on

         21  to our other meeting. We also are going to have a

         22  special meeting, just so everybody knows, on June

         23  4th. Landmarks Subcommittee on June 4th, and Land

         24  Use on June 4th.

         25                 All right, first item is in Dennis
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          2  Gallagher's district. It is site selection for a

          3  school facility, primary and intermediary on 65th

          4  Drive. We'll have to ask him how he got that. 146th

          5  Street, condominiums in Council Member Jackson's

          6  district. It's a motion to file pursuant to the

          7  withdrawal by HPD.

          8                 LU No. 376 is The Savannah. It is a

          9  ULURP UDAAP in Council Member Dickens's district. It

         10  is to facilitate the development of a nine-story

         11  mixed use building.

         12                 LU No. 386 is the Poko South Bronx

         13  Condominiums. It is in Council Member Foster's

         14  district. It is a ULURP UDAAP, it is to facilitate

         15  development of 21 residential units, to be developed

         16  under Department of Housing, Preservation and

         17  Development.

         18                 LU Nos 420 and 421 are related. They

         19  are an amendment to an Urban Renewal Plan, and a

         20  ULURP UDAAP in Council Member Dickens's district. It

         21  is West 128th Street apartments, or 27 residential

         22  units to be developed by HPD.

         23                 LU No. 431 is landmarking in Council

         24  Member Vallone's district, the 31-01, the Piano

         25  Factory building, 31-01, that's a long time coming.
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          2  LU No. 431.

          3                 120 East 125th Street is LU No. 434.

          4  It is in Council Member Mark-Viverito's district. It

          5  is a disposition. There is an amendment to the

          6  disposition. It is that it shall be used only for

          7  community facility uses. It is a firehouse.

          8                 LU No. 435. Council Member Yassky's

          9  and Council Member DeBlasio's district. Also a fire

         10  house. The modification is that the disposition

         11  shall be a community facility use only, and the term

         12  of the disposition shall not exceed 20 years and a

         13  day. Just so everybody knows, it's going to be ten

         14  years and then five years and five-year renewal

         15  possibilities.

         16                 LU No. 436. Council Member Sanders's

         17  district. It is a disposition that shall be used for

         18  community facility use only, according to the

         19  amendment. It is at 5803 Rockaway Beach Boulevard.

         20                 LU No. 445, also a firehouse, at 136

         21  Wythe Avenue in Council Member Yassky's district.

         22  Disposition shall be a community facility use only.

         23                 LU No. 450 is a landmarking in the

         24  Speaker's district. Speaker Quinn at 354 West 11th

         25  Street.
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          2                 LU No. 451 is 159 Charles Street

          3  House. Also in Council Member Speaker Quinn's

          4  district, 159 Charles Street.

          5                 LU No. 452. There's a lot of stuff on

          6  the agenda today. A lot of stuff that went through

          7  the Landmarks Subcommittee today. LU No. 452 is the

          8  Keller Hotel in Council Member Speaker Quinn's

          9  district. 150 Barrow Street, and a sidewalk cafe,

         10  also in Speaker Quinn's district at 22 East 54th

         11  Street where they came to an agreement.

         12                 LU No. 405. Council Member Sanders's

         13  district. 423 in Council Member Arroyo's district.

         14  397 in Council Member Barron's district. 440 also in

         15  Council Member Barron's district. 446 in Arroyo's

         16  district. 447 in Council Member Mealy, and 448 in

         17  Council Member Barron.

         18                 Everything today, just so you know,

         19  has been agreed upon by the Council members and the

         20  Administration, including the amendments that have

         21  been brought to the table.

         22                 Any discussion?

         23                 Wow. Okay, call the roll.

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Katz.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Aye on all.
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK: Avella.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Aye on all.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK: Baez.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BAEZ: Aye on all.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK: Comrie.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Aye on all.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK: Jackson.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Aye on all.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK: Liu.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Yes.

         12                 COUNCIL CLERK: Martinez.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Aye on all.

         14                 COUNCIL CLERK: McMahon.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Aye on all.

         16                 COUNCIL CLERK: Seabrook.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Aye on all.

         18                 COUNCIL CLERK: Sears.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Aye on all.

         20  Aye.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK: Stewart.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Aye on all.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gonzalez.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ: Aye on all.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK: Dickens.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Aye on all.

          3                 COUNCIL CLERK: Lappin.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: Aye on all.

          5                 COUNCIL CLERK: Mendez.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Aye on all.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK: Ignizio.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER IGNIZIO: No on Land

          9  Use 450; aye on all others.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK: Oddo.

         11                 (No response.)

         12                 COUNCIL CLERK: Arroyo.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: Yes.

         14                 COUNCIL CLERK: Felder.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Aye on all.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Just put your

         17  microphone on. I don't think it's on. Just trying to

         18  help.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I vote yes on

         20  all, I just wanted to ask the Counsels to the

         21  Committee whether it is really necessary to keep on

         22  producing 20 copies for everyone? I know I heard

         23  that there is something about having this in front

         24  of us, but is there any way that we could have one

         25  or two copies, other than making 20 of them and
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          2  throwing them out right afterwards? Or is it

          3  necessary to have one sitting in front of each one

          4  of us?

          5                 MS. SCHEIN: Carol Schein, Counsel to

          6  the Committee. And the answer is everybody has to

          7  have one in front of him or her.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: In theory, if

          9  two members are facing each other, do you have to

         10  have two? You could get back to me. It's okay.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK: All items in today's

         12  agenda have been adopted by a vote of 19 in the

         13  affirmative, zero in the negative and no

         14  abstentions, with the exception -- Council Member

         15  Rivera.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: Thank you very

         17  much. I vote aye on all.

         18                 COUNCIL CLERK: All items have been

         19  adopted today by a vote of 20 in the affirmative,

         20  zero in the negative and no abstentions, with the

         21  exceptions of Land Use Item 434, 435, 445, and 450,

         22  which are adopted by a vote of 19 in the

         23  affirmative, one in the negative and zero

         24  abstentions.

         25                 Council Members, please sign all
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          2  Committee reports. Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Can I please,

          4  before you run out, welcome Sara Gonzalez and

          5  Kendall Stewart to the Committee, Land Use

          6  Committee. Today was their first vote, and remind

          7  you that June 4th there is a special meeting. And

          8  please don't leave without signing the reports.

          9                 We're going to go into recess. Please

         10  don't forget Commissioner Burden is for 11:00,

         11  Commissioner of DoITT is at 12:00. Commissioner

         12  Cosgrove. We will call the Commissioner's office and

         13  tell her that if she wants to come over early, she

         14  can.

         15                 She's going to try to come a few

         16  minutes early.

         17                 (Recess taken.)

         18                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member

         19  Garodnick.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Aye.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Were reopening the

         22  Land Use Committee meeting. Councilman Garodnick,

         23  how do you vote?

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Thank you,

         25  Madam Chair. I vote aye.
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK: All items are now

          3  adopted 21 in the affirmative, zero in the negative

          4  and no abstentions, with the exceptions of Land Use

          5  Items 434, 435, 445 and 450, which are now 20 in the

          6  affirmative, zero in the negative, no abstentions.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: We thank the

          8  Council Members for staying to hear this important

          9  testimony by the Commissioner of City Planning. And

         10  we thank her for joining us once again, as she

         11  always does. We also would like to wish Richard a

         12  happy birthday. We understand it's his birthday

         13  today and he chooses to be with us. Careers have

         14  been ruined on singing happy birthday. So, thank him

         15  for spending that with us.

         16                 And, Commissioner, clearly, once

         17  again there is a great respect for your agency that

         18  everybody waits to listen to your testimony and have

         19  a discussion with you every single time. So, we

         20  thank you for being here again, and you have the

         21  floor.

         22                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: Good morning. Good

         23  morning, all Council members. Council Member Dickens

         24  I didn't say hello to.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Commissioner.

                                                            13

          1  FINANCE AND LAND USE COMMITTEES

          2  Commissioner, your microphone is not on.

          3  Sergeant-At-Arms.

          4                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: It's on.

          5                 SERGEANT-AT-ARMS: It's on.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I can't hear you.

          7                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: How is this? Can

          8  you hear me?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: That's better.

         10                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: I'll speak more

         11  closely into the foam. Okay, ready to start. Good

         12  morning, Chair Katz, Chair Weprin, he's coming,

         13  Chair Avella, and distinguished members of the Land

         14  Use and Finance Committee. It is, as always, a

         15  pleasure to discuss with you the Mayor's Fiscal Year

         16  2008 Executive Budget and four-year financial plan

         17  as it relates to the Department of City Planning.

         18                 As always, it is a privilege to work

         19  with each of you and to serve the City of New York

         20  as the Director of the Department of City Planning

         21  and Chair of the New York City Planning Commission.

         22                 To date the Department has advanced

         23  75 area-wide rezonings that have been adopted or are

         24  now in public review covering over 4,500 blocks.

         25                 This extraordinary achievement could
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          2  not have been possible without the close partnership

          3  of the City Council, and I want to thank the

          4  leadership of the Council and its members for their

          5  guidance on these initiatives and their commitment

          6  to their community.

          7                 These rezonings are part of a much

          8  larger vision, one which Mayor Bloomberg articulated

          9  on Earth Day last month, in which he laid out 127

         10  proposals that would set the course for New York

         11  City to become a more sustainable City over the next

         12  quarter of a century.

         13                 The recommendations found in PlaNYC

         14  have set the stage for a City that can accommodate

         15  this burgeoning population through smart growth --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Commissioner, we

         17  need to also be able to hear you. Let's have some

         18  order in the room, if we can.

         19                 Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: Okay.

         21                 Through smart growth techniques, they

         22  will help to ensure the quality of life in our

         23  lifetime, and generations to follow.

         24                 It is in this vein that the

         25  Department is working together with the Department
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          2  of Environmental Protection, EDC and HPD and has

          3  advanced a 368 block plan for Jamaica, Queens. One

          4  of the largest rezonings ever, the Jamaica Plan is

          5  intended to bolster the downtown area through the

          6  encouragement of the transit-oriented development,

          7  while protecting neighborhoods in low-rise

          8  communities through contextual zoning districts.

          9                 Capitalizing on the Air Train as an

         10  anchor for an airport-related business district, the

         11  plan proposes 3 million square feet of commercial

         12  space and 3,400 units of residential development.

         13                 We are working closely with Council

         14  Members Comrie, Weprin, White and Gennaro to

         15  fine-tune the plan and to address concerns that have

         16  arisen through the public review process to date.

         17                 We are pleased to receive Borough

         18  President Marshall's support for the plan, and we

         19  will be working with her and the affected Council

         20  members to respond effectively to their

         21  recommendations.

         22                 The ambitious initiative for St.

         23  Albans/Hollis, which works hand-in-hand with the

         24  Jamaica Plan, entails rezoning 317 blocks to

         25  preserve the lower density character of several
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          2  special neighborhoods.

          3                 I am pleased to confirm that this

          4  rezoning will be certified on Monday, and I'm

          5  especially grateful to Council Member Comrie for his

          6  leadership in advancing this proposal.

          7                 Since I appeared before the Council

          8  in March, the Department has moved forward on

          9  several key rezonings to demonstrate our commitment

         10  to contextual rezoning, neighborhood stability, and,

         11  where appropriate, our pledge to find appropriate

         12  locations for the production of housing.

         13  Particularly with an affordable component.

         14                 In late March the Department

         15  certified 170 block Dyker Heights rezoning, which

         16  will map contextual zones to better preserve the

         17  existing one- and two-family areas of this

         18  neighborhood. Council Members Gentile and Gonzalez

         19  have been our partners on this plan and I thank them

         20  for their support on this plan.

         21                 In April, the Department certified a

         22  nearly 100-block rezoning for Fort Greene/Clinton

         23  Hill that will map contextual zones in these

         24  sought-after residential neighborhoods to better

         25  protect their built character and will also use the
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          2  inclusionary housing program on Fulton, Atlantic and

          3  Myrtle Avenues to induce the production of

          4  affordable housing.

          5                 The leadership of Council Members

          6  James and Vann has been essential on this plan and

          7  we look forward to its adopting this role.

          8                 The Department has also certified a

          9  rezoning for Wakefield in the Bronx in April,

         10  encompassing approximately 130 blocks. This rezoning

         11  will protect the low-density residential areas and

         12  provide for modest growth on the commercial spine of

         13  White Plains Road. We've worked closely with Council

         14  Member Seabrook and Koppell on this Plan and are

         15  pleased to have Community Board 12 support for the

         16  rezoning.

         17                 In Manhattan the Department recently

         18  certified a rezoning for the Upper West Side, to

         19  promote appropriate development that respects the

         20  prevailing character of the area, and provide

         21  opportunities to generate affordable housing units

         22  through the use of the inclusionary housing program

         23  on Broadway.

         24                 Council Members Dickens and

         25  Mark-Viverito were instrumental in achieving
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          2  consensus on this plan alongside Borough President

          3  Stringer.

          4                 The rezoning for Bedford Stuyvesant

          5  South was also certified earlier this month. The

          6  Department has worked closely with Community Board

          7  3, Council Members Vann and Mealy, and HPD on a Land

          8  Use and Housing Plan for 200 blocks that will

          9  reinforce this neighborhood's built character and

         10  maximize opportunities for new housing, including

         11  affordable units on Fulton Street through the use of

         12  inclusionary housing program, and the development of

         13  HPD properties.

         14                 And, finally, in partnership with

         15  Chair Katz, the Department expects to certify a

         16  rezoning for 40 blocks of Forest Hills South next

         17  month, to preserve the existing character of this

         18  area of Community Board 6 and update the zoning

         19  rules to promote more compatible development.

         20                 In the coming months, at the same

         21  time we will be advancing other neighborhood

         22  rezoning studies - City Planning will be moving

         23  forward with several strategic plans, a few of which

         24  I'd like to highlight, given their importance.

         25                 A critical component of Mayor
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          2  Bloomberg's Land Use agenda is to strengthen our

          3  regional business districts. The 125th Street

          4  Corridor Rezoning is key to this strategy. We have

          5  worked with the Harlem Community to create a

          6  balanced proposal to support a mix of uses along the

          7  corridor that will include both targeted increases

          8  in density, as well as the preservation of

          9  neighborhood character. We anticipate a mid-summer

         10  certification for this rezoning and look forward to

         11  working with Council Members Dickens, Jackson and

         12  Mark-Viverito to ensure its success.

         13                 In Staten Island we will be looking

         14  at the West and North Shore studies to develop a

         15  framework for future Land Use and infrastructure

         16  development. Working with EDC, we are retaining a

         17  consultant to help us in this effort, and we expect

         18  to issue an RFP for the West Shore study shortly. We

         19  will also be coordinating with Staten Island EDC's

         20  study of the West Shore transit options in order to

         21  make the most of everyone's research efforts and

         22  work towards a consensus-based vision. It will be

         23  followed by an RFP for a complimentary study of the

         24  North Shore and our goal is to bring a consultant

         25  onboard by the end of the year.
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          2                 We are also moving forward with a

          3  strategic framework for St. George. With its

          4  excellent transportation infrastructure, St. George

          5  is poised for appropriate residential growth and

          6  expanded retail opportunities. I look forward to

          7  working closely with Council Member McMahon, who has

          8  been a steadfast champion of St. George's potential.

          9                 Looking to the future, the Department

         10  is engaged in planning efforts all over the City to

         11  address issues of out-of-character development, to

         12  update zoning regulations that no longer serve their

         13  communities and to catalyze appropriate growth where

         14  infrastructure capacity is in place.

         15                 Over the next month, City Planning

         16  will be refining plans for Coney Island, the South

         17  Bronx, and the Lower East Side/East Village, as well

         18  as completing a Land Use framework for the Gowanus

         19  Canal area. In each, we are working closely with the

         20  affected communities and their elected

         21  representatives to achieve a common vision. I look

         22  forward to discussing these and other initiatives in

         23  our ambitious work plan with you in the future.

         24                 Let me now turn to the budget.

         25                 The Department began Fiscal Year 2007
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          2  with an Expense Budget appropriation of $24.8

          3  million, which consisted of $12 million in City

          4  funds and $12.8 million in federal funds. Thus, 49

          5  percent of the budget was City dollars, and 51

          6  percent federal dollars.

          7                 When the current budget was adopted

          8  in July 2006, the Department of City Planning

          9  authorized headcount was 284 staff positions, of

         10  which 110 were tax levy funded and the remaining 174

         11  positions were funded with federal dollars.

         12                 Since the adoption, the Department

         13  has undergone three financial plan changes pursuant

         14  to the directions from OMB.

         15                 As part of the November Plan, there

         16  were collective bargaining funding adjustments,

         17  totaling $911,670 for Fiscal Year 2007, and $1.3

         18  million in Fiscal 2008 and subsequent years.

         19                 The January Plan modified the

         20  Department's adopted Fiscal Year 2007 tax levy

         21  budget to reflect an increase of $1.4 million. This

         22  amount consisted of $12,748 for collective

         23  bargaining, 1.25 million for environmental

         24  consulting contracts, $60,000 for computer hardware

         25  and software maintenance contracts, and $55,000 for
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          2  digitizing consultant -- a digitizing consultant to

          3  scan and digitize the Department's archive zoning

          4  maps for their preservation and future use.

          5                 The January Plan modified the

          6  Department's Community Development Budget to include

          7  a permanent increase of $7,683 for collective

          8  bargaining, and the Department's Federal and State

          9  Grant budget was updated to include the budgeted

         10  staff level of 41 positions in total funding of $6.6

         11  million.

         12                 The January Plan modified the

         13  Department's Fiscal Year 2008 budget. It included a

         14  tax levy and Community Development block grant

         15  funding swap to address federal legislation barring

         16  the use of federal funds to pay salaries of

         17  personnel working on housing and economic

         18  development projects with an eminent domain

         19  component.

         20                 The Department has identified 43

         21  Community Development funded staff members who have

         22  spent, or who are likely to spend a portion of their

         23  time on such projects.

         24                 OMB has approved an increase of

         25  $514,493 in tax levy funds in Fiscal Year 2008 and
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          2  subsequent years, and an equivalent reduction in

          3  Community Development funds to facilitate a transfer

          4  of these Community Development funded positions to

          5  the Department's tax levy budget.

          6                 In addition, the Department's Tax

          7  Levy budget for Fiscal Year 2008 and future years

          8  includes an increase of $510,000 and seven positions

          9  to increase staffing in the Staten Island office and

         10  one other Borough office, the Counsel's Office, the

         11  Environmental Review Division, and the Housing,

         12  Economic and Infrastructure Planning Division.

         13                 A one-time Other Than Personal

         14  Service addition of $30,000 has been added in Fiscal

         15  Year 2008 to provide each new position with

         16  equipment, materials and supplies. Also in Fiscal

         17  Year 2008 and future years, the Department will

         18  receive a $1.25 million for environmental consulting

         19  contracts and $30,000 for computer hardware and

         20  software maintenance contracts.

         21                 The recently released Executive

         22  Budget makes the following changes to the

         23  Department's budget:

         24                 In order to meet the OMB mandated

         25  targeted reductions of $149,000 for Fiscal Year '07
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          2  and $307,000 for Fiscal Year '08 and subsequent

          3  years, five tax levy funded positions have been

          4  shifted to Community Development Block Grants.

          5                 For Fiscal Year 2008, the Department

          6  received $200,000 for one year to fund three

          7  existing positions for the Hudson Yards Development

          8  project. Although these positions have been funded

          9  in the past two years, they were not funded in the

         10  Fiscal Year '08 January Plan. The Executive Budget

         11  has restored funding for Fiscal Year '08 with the

         12  intent to pursue another funding source in the

         13  out-years.

         14                 The Department received $245,000 and

         15  three positions for its Administrative Technical

         16  Review and Environmental Assessment and Review

         17  Divisions. In addition, there were miscellaneous

         18  adjustments for Fiscal Year '07 and Fiscal Year '08

         19  for heat, light and power, and our Brooklyn office

         20  lease.

         21                 As a result of these changes, the

         22  Department's Fiscal Year '08 Executive Budget calls

         23  for a total allocation of $25 million. Tax levy

         24  funds constitute $12 million, or 47 percent of the

         25  proposed budget while federal funds constitute 13
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          2  million or 53 percent in the proposed budget.

          3                 This provides for 294 budgeted staff,

          4  158 City-funded positions and 136 federally funded

          5  positions.

          6                 For the Executive Budget, the

          7  Department's revenue projections have not changed.

          8  Based on recent and current activity, the Department

          9  is projecting over $1.8 million in Fiscal Year 2007

         10  revenue. The same amount generated in Fiscal Year

         11  '06. For Fiscal Year 2008, the Department's Budget

         12  reflects the implementation of fee increases for

         13  CEQR and ULURP applications. It is projected that

         14  revenues will increase by $975,000 to $2.5 million

         15  in Fiscal Year 2008.

         16                 The additional funding included in

         17  the Fiscal Year '08 Executive Budget will help us

         18  carry out our ambitious planning work program. We

         19  are committed to meet the challenges and demands

         20  posed by the City's growing population, and its

         21  complex Land Use and zoning issues. We seek your

         22  support of the proposed Executive Budget for Fiscal

         23  Year 2008. It will enable its Department of City

         24  Planning to continue to realize an agenda viable to

         25  the long-term growth and viability of the City, and
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          2  we look forward to your continued active

          3  participation in the planning process.

          4                 Thank you so very much.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you, Madam

          6  Chair.

          7                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: Council Member

          8  Weprin, good morning.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: We have joint

         10  Finance hearings because we're backlogged. Parks and

         11  Recreation is going on in the other room, joint with

         12  Finance, so we're going to be having two

         13  simultaneous Finance hearings, along with Land Use

         14  in this room. Since Parks is supposed to go til

         15  11:00 and we're running behind schedule and there

         16  are quite a few members that have questions for the

         17  Parks Commissioner.

         18                 So, I'm going to get into a few

         19  questions, and I may have to leave and go back to

         20  the Parks hearing.

         21                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: Fine.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: But the

         23  Department plans to increase its personal services

         24  budget by six full-time positions for 435,000 in

         25  Fiscal '08 and three full-time positions for 235,000
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          2  in Fiscal '09 and the outyears. The following years

          3  would receive a full-time headcount increase,

          4  administrative 5 and technical review division 1.

          5  One is, what type of positions are being hired? And

          6  then the other question I have, or line of

          7  questioning is regarding the Borough Offices, and

          8  then I'll get into one of my concerns about staffing

          9  borough offices.

         10                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: I will first say,

         11  in terms of educational staff, if we had more

         12  resources, we could certainly do more.  On the

         13  technicalities of those particular individuals, let

         14  me turn the question over to Richard Barth, who is

         15  intimately familiar with what they'll be doing.

         16                 MR. BARTH: In terms of the '08

         17  Executive Budget, three of the positions you

         18  reference where actually funding was provided to

         19  three existing positions, and this is for the Hudson

         20  Yards team. And this has been funded kind of

         21  year-to-year for the past two years. Funding for

         22  this year is put in place for just this year.

         23                 The Hudson Yards team has to do

         24  implementation of the Hudson Yards Plan.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Is that
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          2  sufficient just to have it in '08? What's going to

          3  happen in '09?

          4                 MR. BARTH: Well, we've been in

          5  discussions with OMB to find, either continue the

          6  funding or find alternate sources of funding. And

          7  OMB has made a commitment to us to do that.

          8                 We have had these positions funded

          9  and filled for the past two years.

         10                 In terms of the other three positions

         11  that were added, one is for administration, specific

         12  for procurement. We're an agency of about 300

         13  people, with one person who is involved in

         14  procurement. We find the rules are getting

         15  increasingly complex, it's specifically intended to

         16  assist to facilitate procurement, which affects all

         17  of our planning activities throughout the agency.

         18                 The other two positions, one is in

         19  our Environmental Assessment Review Division. We're

         20  looking at the applications and trying to get a

         21  handle on how to break through some of the log jams

         22  that we're finding. We have one air quality

         23  specialist, and this position would give us the

         24  second air quality specialist, specifically for the

         25  reviews of both private applications, as well as to
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          2  enable us to facilitate our own Department-initiated

          3  application. We think this is very important.

          4                 And then the other one also is

          5  intended to get at moving the work, and that's in

          6  our technical review division, a senior planner to

          7  analyze applications, both private and publicly

          8  initiated applications. So, that's the sum of the

          9  positions that have been added.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay. I'm going

         11  to ask a philosophical bent, and maybe it's related

         12  to staffing, maybe it's not, but a few years ago the

         13  Mayor and yourself embarked on an aggressive

         14  campaign or an aggressive program to downzone

         15  various residential neighborhoods throughout the

         16  City, which I thought was a very good program to

         17  help improve quality of life. And as you know, there

         18  have been a lot of abuses of what could be

         19  considered an outdated zoning text where when in

         20  1961 no one envisioned developers doing what they

         21  have been doing, or, you know, or trying to do in

         22  residential neighborhoods, and a lot of it is

         23  related to the increased real estate value and

         24  market value of many one-, two-, and three-family

         25  homes throughout the City. So, as a result,
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          2  developers were developing on properties that they

          3  legally could do under the zoning code, but nobody

          4  ever contemplated when neighborhoods were planned

          5  and informed, and I think you're very familiar with

          6  that whole area.

          7                 There is a perception in the last

          8  year that the Administration position or goals in

          9  that regard have changed because there are at least

         10  five or six that I know of in Queens, downzonings

         11  that were supposed to have taken place, and for some

         12  reason are now put on the back burner, and I think

         13  that's the case in all the Boroughs throughout the

         14  City and there is an impression upon the part of the

         15  civic communities throughout the City that this is

         16  something coming from on top, because now the Mayor

         17  and the Administration is looking in terms of a

         18  million more people by 2030 and they're looking to

         19  do upzoning in a lot of places and that's become the

         20  priority. And as a result, downzonings that were

         21  promised to civic groups, civic associations and

         22  civic congresses and neighborhoods, are now being

         23  told that they don't have the personnel, or they

         24  have a backlog, and they're being told everything

         25  but the fact that they're not going to be done.
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          2                 So, if you could address that issue

          3  specifically, in general, maybe specifically, and

          4  maybe the answer is that you need more personnel to

          5  complete the downzonings that were promised and

          6  supposed to take place.

          7                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: Well, let me just

          8  say right off that the preservation of neighborhoods

          9  is absolutely an essential part of the Mayor's plan

         10  and we're totally committed to that.

         11                 We, as you know, just in my testimony

         12  I just mentioned that we'll be certifying on Monday

         13  one of the largest rezonings we have ever done to

         14  protect all St. Albans and Hollis. That's 317 blocks

         15  of gigantic rezoning. Simultaneously it just want

         16  into public review, Bedford Stuyvesant, incredible

         17  large rezoning, Fort Greene and Dyker Heights. All

         18  of them are in public review right now. So, they are

         19  very large and very complex. Our commitment is not

         20  diminished.

         21                 As you know, we do zoning lot by lot,

         22  block by block, street by street, and in Queens we

         23  also have the largest rezoning in the City's

         24  history, as you know better than anyone, which is

         25  Jamaica. And that is very complex, and it's a very
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          2  complex process.

          3                 We have begun studies on all the

          4  neighborhoods we're familiar with. It's just really,

          5  really a heavy workload.

          6                 And to be perfectly candid, it will

          7  help to have more people. What Richard and I

          8  struggle with all the time is that it's hardest to

          9  find the middle level managers that can make wise

         10  and measured decisions and not just take data, and

         11  that is something that I think everybody in City

         12  government struggles with because you bring in

         13  talented, mid-level managers and in a very strong

         14  economic -- which we welcome the economic health of

         15  our City, we're competing with the private sector,

         16  and that does stymie our speed.

         17                 But we, as I just mentioned, in all

         18  of these rezonings, also Wakefield on the Bronx,

         19  we're very, very aggressively pursuing an agenda.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: These are all

         21  downzoning we're talking about?

         22                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: Yes. All

         23  neighborhood preservations in Wakefield, there's a

         24  tiny bit on White Plains Road, all of them are

         25  downzoning, Dyker Heights totally, St. Albans
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          2  totally, they're gigantic, really, really big. So,

          3  primary part of our agenda.

          4                 If there is a public transportation

          5  note, we will also look for a balanced rezoning to

          6  try to channel growth to a transportation note, like

          7  on White Plains Road. But our neighborhood

          8  preservation is what people in New York really care

          9  about, and that is very much a part of the Mayor's

         10  agenda and, of course, of our agenda.

         11                 We're doing everything we possibly

         12  can. I totally assure you of that.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Well, I can give

         14  you a list of at least five or six in Queens, I know

         15  there have been inquiries into the Queens's Office,

         16  and, you know, the information is either you don't

         17  have the personnel, they're on the back burner,

         18  they're not getting answers.

         19                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: Because Jamaica

         20  and St. Albans are the ones that have been going

         21  ahead for a long time. I think, if I can be candid,

         22  that probably the error was in promising a time

         23  frame, but they are on the agenda and we will be

         24  getting them to them as immediately as we can. But

         25  St. Albans and Jamaica have been on our agenda for
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          2  the longest.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay, so you

          4  could use extra personnel in regional offices?

          5                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: With more

          6  resources we can always do more. The challenge is

          7  the mid-level management to do the decisions. So, I

          8  always personally walk every block of every rezoning

          9  myself, as do our senior staff. So, it's a very

         10  important component of each of these rezonings. And

         11  we're doing it as fast as we can.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: So you can say

         13  that any rezonings that were discussed, maybe

         14  promised is the wrong word, but there was an

         15  impression on the part of the communities that they

         16  would take place, are still going to take place?

         17                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: They are

         18  definitely going to take place. Definitely. I assure

         19  you of that. It's just a question of when they come

         20  in the sequence. And we totally pledge they are all

         21  part of the plan. None of those rezonings are

         22  terminated or anything, they are very much part of

         23  our agenda, each one.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay. If I, or

         25  any members of Finance Committee or Land Use
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          2  Committee would submit to you a list of asking for a

          3  status update on particular downzoning that was

          4  supposed to take place, can you give us an answer

          5  specifically as to when you anticipate those to take

          6  place?

          7                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: They will be some

          8  time in 2008. I have to walk each one myself. I'm

          9  focused on Jamaica and St. Albans right now, and the

         10  Brooklyn rezonings, Bronx rezonings. As soon as we

         11  complete our Jamaica Initiatives, I can definitely

         12  give you a schedule on each one, and I will walk

         13  each one by the summer. And some will be in 2007, I

         14  can't tell you which ones, but we're going as fast

         15  as we can.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay, I'm going

         17  to not hold you to it here, I don't want to get off

         18  on a tangent, but I know I will be submitting a list

         19  to you and if you could give me an estimated time

         20  frame and I know a number of my colleagues feel the

         21  same way.

         22                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: I won't be able to

         23  give it to you this summer. I have to walk each one

         24  myself. But I will do that.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Well, at least
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          2  give me an indication as to when you think that

          3  might take place.

          4                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: I also can confirm

          5  to you, what I will confirm, Council member, is that

          6  they are indeed all on our agenda. That's the first

          7  thing.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Well, that's

          9  important.

         10                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: Exactly. Which I

         11  wanted to let you know, all of those rezonings that

         12  are on the agenda will get done. It's a question of

         13  whether they get done 2007, 2008, but I'll reconfirm

         14  that.

         15                 And then I will also tell you, which

         16  ones I have to get back to you in terms of the exact

         17  time frame. Because I don't want to over-promise,

         18  but I think that's where we made an error.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: I'm sorry?

         20                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: I don't want to

         21  over-promise in terms of time frame, but I will

         22  commit that they will get done.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay, we've been

         24  joined by a number of colleagues I guess from the

         25  Finance and Land Use Committees. I see Council
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          2  Member Tony Avella, the Chair of the Zoning and

          3  Franchise Subcommittee of the Land Use. Council

          4  Member Tish James from Brooklyn, Council Member

          5  Helen Sears from Queens, or Deputy Majority Leader

          6  Council Member Leroy Comrie from Queens. Council

          7  Member Kendall Stewart from Brooklyn. Council Member

          8  Simcha Felder from Brooklyn. And I'm now going to

          9  turn it back to Chair Katz, and I may be going back

         10  to the Parks hearing, but we'll be in touch.

         11                 Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I just want to

         14  follow-up on one of the questions. First of all, I'd

         15  like to thank you for all the work that we do do

         16  together. I think that we manage to have a good

         17  working relationship with the Committee, and I do

         18  find you to be open to the Council members who call.

         19  So, Council Members sometimes call me and say I

         20  would like to meet with Commissioner Burden, and I'm

         21  like call her, it's okay, and you always do, so I

         22  just want to tell you how much we appreciate that.

         23                 But I want to follow up, I think

         24  we've asked, and we don't need it right now, for a

         25  list of the staff members in each of the borough
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          2  offices. Not the names, but the amount of staff

          3  members, what they do, what positions they hold, and

          4  if there is any Citywide that are in the Manhattan

          5  office that deal with the different boroughs.

          6                 I don't know if you've gotten that to

          7  us yet or not.

          8                 MR. BARTH: We haven't gotten anything

          9  written yet. We can certainly provide you with the

         10  number of staff in the boroughs. Just so you

         11  understand how we're set up at City Planning, we

         12  have the borough offices which pretty much do the

         13  Land Use planning of the face of the community, but

         14  every division in the agency, when we do a

         15  neighborhood rezoning, we do the environmental

         16  review, which involves economic planning,

         17  socioeconomic analysis by technical review people

         18  and sometimes our planning coordination all based at

         19  22 Reade, get involved in projects initiated by the

         20  borough. So, it would be hard to say -- you know, we

         21  work collaboratively in teams, we certainly could

         22  give you the borough staffing and then indicate that

         23  we have this input, Urban Design, Zoning Division,

         24  all play a role in our studies.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: No, and I think we
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          2  understand that. I think, you know, in Queens you

          3  have a very active Land Use staff there in your

          4  office. You know, we pretty much know what we can go

          5  to them for as opposed to the City office or vice

          6  versa. But having a breakdown of the borough offices

          7  would really be helpful to us.

          8                 MR. BARTH: And also to follow-up on

          9  what Council Member Weprin was saying, sometimes the

         10  communities simply need a time line. I mean, they

         11  may not be happy with the time line, we may not be

         12  happy with the time line, we may think it should be

         13  sooner, but I find that most of the frustration from

         14  the communities is not knowing and not getting an

         15  answer as to when we think it's going to be

         16  certified.

         17                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: Or being promised

         18  at an earlier date, make everybody happy, and then

         19  they're incredibly unhappy when it doesn't happen.

         20  Realistic time frame, and that's what we pledge to

         21  get to the Council member and to you, as well.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Okay.

         23                 Council Member Comrie.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Thank you,

         25  Chair.
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          2                 Good morning, Commissioner Burden. I

          3  want to thank you for -- I'm forgetting your

          4  Deputy's name, that's why I was --

          5                 MR. BARTH: Richard Barth.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Richard Barth.

          7  Thank you. I want to thank you for the privilege of

          8  working with you for the last few years. Before I

          9  get parochial, just on the staffing in general, over

         10  the last couple of years, the Council has talked

         11  about putting in additional money for staffing, and

         12  I see in your testimony that the Mayor has asked you

         13  to do pegs to come up with cuts in the next two

         14  years, and I just think that that's just totally

         15  against what we need in an agency that's been

         16  continuing to fight to maintain development, to

         17  maintain the opportunities to do the downzoning to

         18  maintain all of the work that has to be done,

         19  especially if we're going to try to accommodate

         20  another million people in the next few years. And I

         21  just want to try to understand why is there a desire

         22  from OMB to cut your money in spite of all of the

         23  work that you have to do?

         24                 MR. BURDEN: Richard has asked if he

         25  could answer that question.
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          2                 MR. BARTH: What they actually did,

          3  OMB recognized that we're not flushed with funds and

          4  they allowed us to meet our peg, our reduction

          5  through really an accounting exercise, shifting tax

          6  levy positions to CDs. So, the tax levy budget did

          7  go down but our CD budget went up by an equivalent

          8  amount. So, they recognize that we really can't

          9  afford to take those cuts.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay. So, in

         11  actuality, you're not taking any personnel cuts, or

         12  headcount cuts?

         13                 MR. BARTH: That's right.

         14                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: No, they kept us

         15  whole.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: What about

         17  additional headcount to meet the demand? Are they

         18  dealing with the need?

         19                 I know you mentioned that now with so

         20  much work going on, you know, it's more lucrative to

         21  get a job in the private sector, but I'm sure

         22  there's still people that want to do City service

         23  and you know, work on behalf of changing the face of

         24  the City.

         25                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: We do have an
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          2  increase of ten people from last year.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: You will have

          4  an increase of ten people, and that will be across

          5  the board, helping out in the borough offices, as

          6  well?

          7                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: Borough offices,

          8  trying to receive applications more quickly, it's a

          9  whole range of subjects. Also, Hudson Yards borough

         10  offices.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.

         12                 MR. BARTH: Right. There was two

         13  people added to counsel's office, to our

         14  Environmental Review Division. So, it was across the

         15  board. There were two added to the borough offices

         16  and the rest were in the Technical Review Divisions.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Well, I just

         18  want to make a point that I think if there is any

         19  agency that needs to maintain the headcount and

         20  increased headcount, that your agency, especially

         21  one that has a history and a good working

         22  relationship with members, I don't have the same

         23  issues on because my two rezonings are up next, but

         24  I remember it being there for the last four years

         25  fighting to get mine on board. So, it's not like
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          2  they just happened overnight, it's been a four-year

          3  process. And you know, I know that other communities

          4  are impatient, as well, with all of the

          5  overdevelopment being done, and that's why I think

          6  that you need to get done as much as possible.

          7                 Just one other thing. You said that

          8  you're paying for a consultant to deal with your

          9  categorizing all of your previous plans?

         10                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: Digitizing the

         11  map.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Digitizing

         13  your consultants to digitize all your archive plans.

         14                 How else are you doing with your

         15  computerization to be able to modify and upgrade

         16  your office? Are there any other plans to continue

         17  to modernize the office so that you can be totally

         18  computerized?

         19                 MR. BARTH: We're all on computers at

         20  the office. This phase of what we're doing is trying

         21  to get more desktop information, and more

         22  information on the web so that the agency becomes

         23  more transparent in terms of the information that's

         24  available from the public.

         25                 And we've got several projects in the
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          2  process, including the digitizing the zoning map,

          3  but also putting the Land Use Management System

          4  ultimately on desktops for City workers and after

          5  that on the web itself, or accessed by the public so

          6  if somebody wants to look up the status of an

          7  application, they can do that without having to call

          8  somebody.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay. What

         10  about the zoning handbook? Is that available on the

         11  web?

         12                 MR. BARTH: We have now put that up on

         13  the web?

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay, you put

         15  it up?

         16                 MR. BARTH: Mm-hmm.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I'm sorry,

         18  there's a lot of background noise in here. I can't

         19  hear the answers.

         20                 MR. BARTH: Major portions of that

         21  have already been put up on the web.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay, great.

         23  Again, I want to thank you for your outreach and for

         24  walking through St. Albans and Hollis and all of the

         25  Downtown Jamaica rezoning. And I want to thank
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          2  especially your Queens staff, John Young, Debbie

          3  Conny and Bob Hobo (phonetic) for all of the work

          4  they're doing.

          5                 You're having the first public

          6  hearing on the Jamaica rezoning on May 23rd, I

          7  believe?

          8                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: On Wednesday, yes.

          9  We'll be out in Jamaica.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Right.

         11                 And I just had a question on the

         12  issues of the Atex versus the original tex

         13  (phonetic); is that going to be discussed on the

         14  23rd, or is that adopted as part of this rezoning?

         15                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: We'll be hearing

         16  comments on the Atex --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: As well as?

         18                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: Exactly. So,

         19  they'll be able to vote on both the zoning proposal

         20  and all elements of that, and the Atex at the same

         21  time.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:

         23  Simultaneously.

         24                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: Exactly. So, they

         25  now dovetail.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: So, any

          3  corrections that are done will be done part during

          4  that period and then the other part after it comes

          5  before us in the Council?

          6                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: Exactly.

          7  Everything will come to you at exactly the same

          8  time.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Right. So, if

         10  there are any -- so, once it gets to us, we can do

         11  whatever adjustments we can with upzoning or

         12  downzoning, correct?

         13                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: Correct.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: We have wide

         15  latitude to what can be adjusted after that

         16  particular point? There are a lot of people who are

         17  concerned about what latitude we have.

         18                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: Exactly.

         19                 And then as I think you know, we have

         20  a process called a fuca. I think that was named by

         21  Council Member Katz.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Right.

         23                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: And if there are

         24  certain issues that are out of scope, we know the

         25  Jamaica plan is very important to the entire City
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          2  and, of course, to the entire stakeholders in

          3  Jamaica. We will follow-up anything that might be

          4  out of scope immediately with a fuca to fine-tune.

          5  So, it's a question of whether it's in or out of

          6  scope. But that's --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: What would be

          8  considered out of scope?

          9                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: Something that

         10  hasn't been analyzed in EIS, and in and out of scope

         11  is a very technical and complicated term to grasp. I

         12  don't know if we can define it, but partially it

         13  means what hasn't been analyzed in the Environmental

         14  Impact Statement, and if it's more restrictive than

         15  between existing zoning and proposed zoning, but if

         16  it's more restricted -- it's a very complicated

         17  term.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Right.

         19                 So, you're really talking about

         20  restrictions and setbacks more than heights or

         21  densities or block by block.

         22                 MR. BARTH: And it's both the

         23  Commission and the Council are bound by the same

         24  scope restrictions. Kind of one way of thinking

         25  about it is what's permitted today, what's proposed,
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          2  and then anything in between is within scope. If

          3  it's higher or lower, that as a general rule is not

          4  within scope.

          5                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: On any particular

          6  questions you have, we can let you know whether it

          7  will be in or out of scope, and if there is definite

          8  possibility, as we fine-tune a plan, any of our big

          9  plans have always had a fuca.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.

         11                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: Whether that's

         12  Greenpoint/Williamsburg or Hudson Yards or West

         13  Chelsea, they all have fucas, and we actually have

         14  more fucas, and we will follow immediately up.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And does the

         16  fuca have to go through the same process?

         17                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: As any ULURP it

         18  can be expedited by community review and Borough

         19  President review and we can act faster on it.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: It does have

         21  to go through the same process. So, the object is to

         22  try to get as many things put in the plan for --

         23                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: Yes.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I just want to

         25  be clear on that.
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          2                 I want to also thank your borough

          3  team. Just for the other members to know, they did a

          4  very extensive outreach on both plans. They actually

          5  had an ad hoc committee that met at the Borough

          6  Office, and I want to thank you for giving them that

          7  access that was my advice. It kind of turned a

          8  little to the left a little bit but we'll fix that

          9  in the future, but it gave, obviously, the community

         10  residents an opportunity to go to the City Planning

         11  Borough Office and look block-by-block at the

         12  Jamaica plan. It gave them the opportunity to

         13  understand what R2 is versus an R7A, and I wanted to

         14  thank your office. They were very open. We had

         15  community board people and non-community board

         16  concerned residents that were part of that effort.

         17  They actually had a chance to sit down and

         18  understand the entire plan and now become as

         19  conversant as almost anybody, some to my chagrin

         20  that they are that conversant, but, it, you know,

         21  also raises the bar and it shows the transparency of

         22  the office. And I want to thank you for giving them

         23  that access. It clearly shows that we can have

         24  community participation in this plan. So, I would

         25  encourage any Council member that has a forth-coming
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          2  plan, to look to do something similar, not exactly

          3  the same, but to make sure that anyone that is

          4  interested in what's going on in their neighborhood,

          5  know that especially in the Queens Office, I can

          6  only speak for Queens, but they have been open and

          7  giving and very transparent about the whole process,

          8  so I want to thank you for that. And I look forward

          9  to working with you over the next couple of weeks,

         10  to get both these plans done as quickly as possible.

         11                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: Excellent. Thank

         12  you for your kind words. I'll make sure to tell

         13  John, Debbie and Rob. Thanks.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Thank you.

         15                 Thank you, Madam Chair.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Councilwoman James.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Commissioner, I

         18  just wanted to report that last night the Land Use

         19  Committee of Community Board 2, voting out the

         20  rezoning of Fort Greene and Clinton Hill by a vote

         21  of five to two, I believe, and the reason why there

         22  were two objections or abstentions was over a

         23  controversy concerning Pratt College. And Pratt, Dr.

         24  Shudy was there last night and wanted to retain, I

         25  believe, the 7A zoning, and I believe the plan
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          2  proposes to downzone it to 7-1 or vice versa, or

          3  something like that. Vice versa. So, that was the

          4  controversy surrounding that lot.

          5                 And then the other amendment was a

          6  suggestion that I had made with respect to the

          7  inclusionary zoning, to not allow developers build

          8  the affordable housing off-site. I oppose

          9  segregative housing and it's consistent with 421-A.

         10  On 421-A that was my recommendation, and I would

         11  hope that the rezoning mirror the 421-A language and

         12  not allow developers to build the affordable housing

         13  off site.

         14                 We are trying to truncate the period

         15  of time. The Borough President has agreed to hold

         16  his hearing at the same time as the community board,

         17  or something like that. So, we're trying to get this

         18  in record timing with this approval. Because as you

         19  know, the district that I love and represent and

         20  will fight for with all my emotion is under siege.

         21                 Right now there are four towers being

         22  proposed. One on the famous block where Come Cow is,

         23  which is the subject of a number of children's

         24  books. An 18-story luxury tower. One in Adelfi,

         25  another one on Vanderbilt, another one on Grande.
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          2  So, I've got to get this done in a month or two

          3  months' time and so I spoke to the Brooklyn

          4  Commissioner last night who has been absolutely

          5  wonderful. She says if Marty sends a letter, she'll

          6  have her hearing right after Marty gets it to her,

          7  June 15th, or there or about. And perhaps you can

          8  kick it out and send it to us and we could probably

          9  get it done along with the budget.

         10                 So, I'm hoping and praying that this

         11  works, but I'm an optimist. A drunken optimist.

         12                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: You know we did

         13  that with South Slope?

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Yes. I know

         15  record time. Record time.

         16                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: Yes.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: And also, thank

         18  you, in the absence of Al Vann, Bed Stuy, I share

         19  that with him, as well. You certified that, so

         20  you're doing a lot in Brooklyn. But if you could

         21  increase the resources and I know I'm preaching to

         22  the choir and I will be advocating on your behalf to

         23  increase the budget, to increase your own budget

         24  throughout the City of New York and thank you for

         25  all that you do.
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          2                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: Council Member,

          3  thank you for your kind words. Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Council Member

          5  Sears.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you,

          7  Madam Chair.

          8                 Good morning, Commissioner.

          9                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: Good morning.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: It's good to

         11  see you again. And I'll just say before I ask my

         12  question that your office has really just been on

         13  target with so many of the developmental problems

         14  and zoning issues, so I want to thank you for so

         15  many things you've done in my district.

         16                 My question is, in the '08 budget,

         17  would you say that you have enough money? -- Nobody

         18  ever has enough money, so I shouldn't put it that

         19  way -- to actually consider and reviewing a few more

         20  districts in Queens? Or would it have to be added to

         21  the budget to do that?

         22                 Where are you with the rezoning

         23  that's going on in the City? Because it seems to be

         24  growing, and it takes more of your time. You said

         25  you were hiring ten additional staff. I don't know
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          2  where they were going to go. Are you hiring any new

          3  planners?

          4                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: If we had more

          5  resources we could do more, let's put it that way.

          6  And it is a very large City.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: That's why I

          8  asked.

          9                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: And we have, as

         10  Council Member Weprin just asked, there are a number

         11  of rezonings in Queens that we have promised to do.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: All right, then

         13  maybe I'll ask this question: How many rezonings,

         14  approximately, that you really have underway now, in

         15  the City as a whole?

         16                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: I think ULURP we

         17  have about eight underway, and probably about 25 in

         18  the process, something like that.

         19                 MR. BARTH: Correct.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: And of that,

         21  how many do you have in Queens?

         22                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: In terms of the

         23  ones that are in process?

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Yes.

         25                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: Probably about
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          2  eight. I think that's about right. The ones that are

          3  on next the agenda.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Any more

          5  anticipating?

          6                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: You know, I'd have

          7  to go over it with you.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Good. Okay.

          9                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: Some of the

         10  rezonings are large. St. Albans, 317 blocks, so it

         11  really depends on the size and the complexity. Some

         12  districts are very, let's say more homogenous and

         13  more simple in their rezoning. Some are fine-tuned

         14  and complex, block-by-block.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Then I should

         16  go over that with you.

         17                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: Exactly.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you very

         19  much.

         20                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: And probably over

         21  in Queens, look at different sizes and --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Okay, fine. We

         23  need to deal with that in negotiating. Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Council Member

         25  Gerson.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Hi.

          3                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: Hi. How are you?

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: We had a

          5  hearing next door. Good morning. I would be remiss

          6  if I did not want to acknowledge the success we have

          7  experienced in the revitalization. It would not have

          8  happened, as well, without your leadership and your

          9  commitment. I thank you on behalf of all of us.

         10                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: The compliment is

         11  returned.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: I should stop

         13  there. I never do everything I should do.

         14                 So, in that vein, actually two

         15  concerns, and budget related. But in terms of the

         16  process, perhaps we could, as we are so successful,

         17  two concerns that have repeatedly come up with

         18  either rezonings large or small, City land

         19  dispositions, as we allow for heightened residential

         20  development, is that we as a City are not adequately

         21  planning for to assure sufficient school space,

         22  classroom space, and sufficient accommodation for

         23  increased traffic, particularly in the realm of

         24  parking.

         25                 In order to do this, and we're going
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          2  to be presenting to you some procedural reform

          3  suggestions, but that's for different hearings and

          4  this is of the budget, in order, you know, to keep

          5  up with our success in that vein, do we need to kind

          6  of give your Department an additional budget to

          7  incorporate the planners who would work in those two

          8  areas? Or are you getting the necessary support from

          9  DOT, or the Department of Education?

         10                 I mean, just what happens so

         11  frequently is we're playing catch-up. We have these

         12  wonderful new buildings, new families come in, the

         13  schools get overcrowded and there's a lag until we

         14  catch up with the population, and, you know, the

         15  problem with the lag in addition to sometimes things

         16  done get done right when we're in a rush, but kids

         17  are caught up in that time period and they're

         18  shortchanged.

         19                 So, is there anything we can do to

         20  help you help us in those things?

         21                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: As I mentioned

         22  before, and I always try to be diplomatic, I will

         23  say with more resources we could do more. And, so,

         24  I'll just say it that way.

         25                 Then the issue of multi-agency
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          2  coordination is absolutely essential to real

          3  success, and the Deputy Mayor has really convened in

          4  all major rezonings multi-agencies to work together

          5  to achieve the results. And in each, whether it's

          6  Downtown Brooklyn or Lower Manhattan, or Jamaica,

          7  multi-agency task force of different agencies, for

          8  instance, in Jamaica the Department of Environmental

          9  Protection is a key player, as is the School

         10  Construction Authority, Sharon Greenberger, in terms

         11  of getting sites where we can locate new schools.

         12  Again, Lower Manhattan, working with the School

         13  Construction Authority is absolutely essential,

         14  because we need all these things to make it a

         15  community, and service the community, and the Mayor

         16  is -- the Mayor's position that you have to invest

         17  now in order to secure the City's future, and that's

         18  how he puts it.

         19                 So, if there is areas who can do it

         20  better, we'd be delighted to hear your suggestions.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Well, again,

         22  we need to depend on your ongoing leadership and

         23  work closely with that. So, we'll follow-up.

         24                 I would just add on to what you said,

         25  that sometimes it's not just your large scale
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          2  rezonings, but when schools are sometimes at the

          3  overcrowded point that they often are, even a

          4  smaller rezoning could put a community over the

          5  tipping point, and therefore that extra degree of

          6  analysis and proactive planning is really crucial

          7  because of our great success.

          8                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: As you know, the

          9  Environmental Impact Statement analyzes that very

         10  thoroughly, but we believe you need to go the extra

         11  step to personally engage the Commissioners that are

         12  involved in those divisions, so we do both.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Okay, so we'll

         14  follow-up on that.

         15                 And also, and I'll just underscore,

         16  you know, we did hear you say that of course, with

         17  more resources you can do even more, so that's

         18  something we need to follow-up on in this vein.

         19                 My other question, again, in part due

         20  to our successes and the growth of residential

         21  communities and mixed use areas and 24/7, there have

         22  been a couple of proposals for carving out new use

         23  groups to take into account, you know, the needs of

         24  these new and expanding communities. And, again, as

         25  this is a budget hearing, my question is, do you
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          2  have a sufficient budget to dedicate the necessary

          3  staff to do what I know is the required analysis and

          4  procedure to see if we can carve out these two

          5  additional use groups and the full review that

          6  requires. The two use groups being the following:

          7                 One, specifically for telecom hotels.

          8  Those being buildings which are indispensable to our

          9  cities and indeed our nations, a communications

         10  network, but they house great quantities of diesel

         11  fuel which have to be tested which create noise and

         12  create air quality issues and probably don't belong

         13  in residential areas for those reasons, but yet,

         14  currently there is no use group which takes them our

         15  of residential areas. So, that's an analysis we hope

         16  to see done. And the other, something I've discussed

         17  with your staff, I know, I believe they're looking

         18  into it, this idea of separating out the bars and

         19  the late night bars and lounges from entertainment,

         20  the broad entertainment use groups, so we don't

         21  treat a restaurant the same as we treat, you know,

         22  an all night or virtually all-night club for zoning

         23  purposes because they really have different radical

         24  impacts on the community and zoning use groups

         25  should be based on different impacts.
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          2                 So, are we able, in the upcoming

          3  fiscal year, to do the type analysis necessary to

          4  look into those proposals?

          5                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: I don't want to

          6  punt, but I'm going to turn to Richard.

          7                 MR. BARTH: On an ongoing basis, over

          8  the past year we've added a couple of people to our

          9  zoning division, and now in the new budget, the new

         10  budget we have a couple more people in our Housing

         11  and Economic Planning Division and we'll be staffing

         12  up. So, I think as part of our ongoing work,

         13  continually looking to update the resolution in a

         14  variety of ways, including use groups.

         15                 I would say the two issues you have

         16  pointed out are not easy issues, but certainly

         17  prepares --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: And we know

         19  you have a great track record in tackling the

         20  difficult issues, so we want to build on that.

         21                 So, this is a conversation we can

         22  have. It's not at this point precluded by budgetary

         23  concerns?

         24                 MR. BARTH: That's correct.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Okay, thank
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          2  you very much. Madam Chair, these are certainly

          3  issues which we will follow-up with you and with the

          4  Committee and with your great leadership, to get

          5  something good done.

          6                 Thank you very much.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you,

          8  Councilman Gerson.

          9                 Council Member Dickens.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Thank you so

         11  much, Madam Chair, and our Chair of Finance.

         12                 I want to thank the Commissioner

         13  publicly for the great assistance that we received

         14  on the Broadway Quarter rezoning. I don't know

         15  whether you were made aware yet, but last night they

         16  voted unanimously to pass. I mean, that was a long,

         17  long time that we worked on this, and it was very

         18  difficult because the community was adamant about

         19  the changes, and you were willing to make many of

         20  those changes. Not 100 percent, but it's okay, you

         21  did wonderful. You did a great job with the Broadway

         22  Quarter rezoning. It was R8A to R9 to FAR. So, it

         23  was a learning experience that has prepared me for

         24  the 125th Street rezoning that we're working on

         25  presently. But I do want to thank you, because you
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          2  expedited, once we got everything done and we agreed

          3  to everything, the community was happy with what was

          4  finally outcome, then you expedited at City Planning

          5  to get it through so that it could go to the

          6  community planning board, and last night the Land

          7  Use voted on it unanimously. So, it will go to the

          8  full board, but I've rest assured that it will pass,

          9  and then it will be here at the City Council, and I

         10  will lobby my colleagues, if I may use that word.

         11                 So, thank you so much, Commissioner,

         12  for your help, and I look forward to the fight we

         13  will have for the 125th Street rezoning. Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: That's great. And

         15  thank you for your leadership on the Upper West

         16  Side.

         17                 About a year ago I didn't think it

         18  was possible and then you came aboard and corralled

         19  everybody and put it forward, and so thank you for

         20  your leadership on this. It's amazing. Thank you.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Thank you,

         22  Commissioner.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: We are done. Okay,

         24  Commissioner, we want to thank you very much --

         25                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: Thank you, Madam
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          2  Chair.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:-- For your

          4  testimony today, as always. I think it is always

          5  good for the Council members to be able to have an

          6  open discussion with you. And I thank you, Richard,

          7  for joining us here today, and your staff, of

          8  course.

          9                 DoITT is next door, so we are going

         10  to start that now. So, please, if you could join us,

         11  that would be great. Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: Thank you, Council

         13  members. We appreciate it.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Leroy, the Finance

         15  Chair wanted to start that Committee meeting before

         16  we were done. So, it's next door.

         17                 (Hearing concluded at 12:00 p.m.)
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